
   

 
 

Nottingham City Council 

Companies Governance Executive Sub-Committee 

 
Date: Tuesday, 19 January 2021 
 
Time:  3.00 pm (or at the rising of Executive Board, whichever is the later) 
 
Place: Remotely via Zoom – https://www.youtube.com/user/NottCityCouncil  
 
Councillors are requested to attend the above meeting to transact the following 
business 

 
Director for Legal and Governance 
 
Governance Officer: Mark Leavesley      Direct Dial: 0115 876 4302 
 
1  Apologies for absence  

 
 

2  Declarations of interests  
 

 

3  Minutes  
Last meeting held on 20 November 2020 (for confirmation) 
 

3 - 10 

4  Governance Improvement Programme - progress update and 
lessons learnt  
Report of Director of Legal and Governance 
 

11 - 40 

5  Work plan  
For discussion / noting 
 

41 - 42 

6  Council owned company discussion - Nottingham City Homes 
(NCH)  
Presentation by Nick Murphy, Chief Executive, NCH 
 

43 - 64 

7  Exclusion of the public  
To consider excluding the public from the meeting during consideration 
of the remaining items in accordance with Section 100A of the Local 
Government Act 1972, on the basis that having regard to all the 
circumstances, the public interest in maintaining the exemption 
outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information 
 

 

8  Council owned company discussion - Nottingham City Homes 
(NCH)  
Presentation by Nick Murphy, Chief Executive, NCH 
 

65 - 70 

9  Council owned companies financial performance update  
Report of Strategic Director of Finance 
 

71 - 108 

Public Document Pack



If you need any advice on declaring an interest in any item on the agenda, please contact 
the Governance Officer shown above, if possible before the day of the meeting  
 

Citizens are advised that this meeting may be recorded by members of the public. Any 
recording or reporting on this meeting should take place in accordance with the Council’s 
policy on recording and reporting on public meetings, which is available at 
www.nottinghamcity.gov.uk. Individuals intending to record the meeting are asked to notify 
the Governance Officer shown above in advance.



1 

Nottingham City Council  
 

Companies Governance Executive Sub-Committee 
 
Minutes of the meeting held remotely and livestreamed on YouTube on 17 
November 2020 from 3.00 pm - 4.47 pm 
 
Membership  
Present Absent 
Councillor Sally Longford (Vice Chair) 
Councillor David Mellen (Chair) 
Councillor Sam Webster 
Councillor Adele Williams 
Councillor Linda Woodings 

 
 
 
(for minutes 61 to 69 inclusive only) 
 

 
 
Colleagues, partners and others in attendance:  
 

Nottingham Ice Centre Limited 
Martin Ingham - Chief Executive 
Marie Marshall - Finance Director 
Glen O’Connell - Vice-Chair of the Board 
Mich Stevenson OBE - Chair of the Board 
  
Nottingham City Council 
Bipon Bhakri - Head of Finance (Commercial and Projects) 
Clive Heaphy - Interim Director of Strategic Finance 
Beth Brown - Head of Legal and Governance 
Mark Leavesley - Governance Officer 
Malcolm Townroe - Director of Legal and Governance   (minutes 61-64 only) 
Hugh White - Corporate Director for Covid Response and Recovery 

 
 
Call-in 
Unless stated otherwise, all decisions made by the Companies Governance 
Executive Sub-Committee are subject to call-in. The last date for call-in is Friday 27 
November 2020. Decisions cannot be implemented until the next working day 
following this date. 
 
 
61  Apologies for absence 

 
None. 
 
62  Declarations of interests 

 
No declarations of interests were made. 
 
63  Minutes 

 
The Committee agreed the minutes of the meeting held on 20 October 2020 as a 
correct record and they were signed by the Chair. 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Companies Governance Executive Sub-Committee - 17.11.20 

2 

64  Company Director training and development: roles and responsibilities 
 

This item does not contain any decisions that are eligible for call-in. 
 
Malcolm Townroe, Director of Legal and Governance, presented the report, which 
provided an update on progress towards completion of the Action Plan in response to 
the External Auditor’s report issued in the public interest in August 2020. Specifically, 
providing an update to the Sub-Committee on actions relating to Councillor training 
and development. 
 
The main points were as follows: 
 
a) the review has been limited to current board membership, the appointment 

process and, in particular, the power to appoint, and the representation of 
shareholder interest, or in the case of companies limited by guarantee, member 
interests: 

 
b) as it is essential that all NCC Councillors and officers are equipped with the basic 

core competencies and understanding of the legal duties and liabilities 
associated with their position as a Director, advice on the core competencies and 
training required to effectively discharge the duties of Directors has been sought 
from appropriately qualified external bodies which, alongside guidance found in 
the review of best practice, has been used to produce a list of training 
requirements; 

 
c) a draft competency framework, developed by the Learning and Development 

Team (section 2.16 of the report), building on the foundation of training and 
induction all Councillors receive, to enable a pipeline of progression into 
company directorships, where appropriate, up to and including the development 
of industry specific knowledge and skills; 

 
d) the annual development programme in place for all councillors covers essential 

learning and desirable learning associated with their roles and responsibilities. 
Much of this training will lay the foundations and provide fundamental skill 
development for Company Directors which they should then add to through core, 
advanced and specialist learning as required; 

 
e) a Councillor Development Programme is put together each financial year, 

consisting of in-house learning facilitated by the Council’s Development and 
Change Team, sessions from East Midlands Councils and from the Local 
Government Association; 

 
f) an identified training gap is partly explained by Councillor training records having 

only transferred to the Corporate system in 2018, however, in the absence of a 
clear record, it is recommended that all Councillors serving in the role of 
company Directors receive the training listed in section 2.28 of the report, 
regardless of whether the company is a wholly owned subsidiary; 

 
g) based on the review of best practice, and as outlined in the UK Code, it is also 

recommended that company Chairs of Council subsidiaries commission annual 
independent evaluations of board performance by an appropriately qualified 
body, which will report back to the board and to the Companies Governance 
Executive Sub-Committee. 

 
Page 4



Companies Governance Executive Sub-Committee - 17.11.20 

3 

In response to a question, Mr Townroe stated that the ‘basic’ training will commence 
at the beginning of December 2020, and that the ‘regular’ training will be undertaken 
on an annual basis, although this could be more often if required/requested by an 
individual. 
 
In response to a question, Mr Townroe stated that Director tenure should be for a 
minimum of 2 years as short-term turnover of Directors is not an ideal situation for 
any company. 
 
Other comments made during discussion were: 
 
h) the suggestions in the report were welcomed as they would ensure a more robust 

training programme going forwards; 
 

i) a ‘rolling tenure’ should be considered where possible to prevent a wholesale 
change of Directors, and therefore a major loss of knowledge/experience at the 
same time; 

 
j) Any Councillor/Officer Director should be removed from the relevant company 

Board if their training is not kept up to date. 
 
Resolved to note the report. 
 
Reasons for recommendation 
 
This report is for noting only. Where the report refers to recommendations, these are 
recommendations for the Governance Improvement Programme moving forward and 
not recommendations for which approval is being sought from this Committee. 
 
Other options considered 
 
None. 
 
65  Council owned companies: Financial Governance Framework 

 
This item does not contain any decisions that are eligible for call-in. 
 
Bipon Bhakri, Head of Finance (Commercial and Projects), presented the report, 
detailing the Company’s Financial Governance Framework for the Council in relation 
to the companies in its group, and explaining what poor financial governance is and 
the use of the ‘3 lines of defence’ to enable the council to undertake effective 
assurance of each company’s financial and business position. 
 
The main points were as follows: 
 
a) good financial governance means that a company is collecting, calculating and 

presenting financial data according to regulatory rules. Good business 
governance is the implementation and reporting of performance against agreed 
plans and managing identifiable risks which could prevent the delivery of those 
plans; 

 
b) organisations must get governance and control right. Successful delivery of 

governance and control can make a huge long-term difference in a company’s 

Page 5



Companies Governance Executive Sub-Committee - 17.11.20 

4 

viability and plays a big role in how it competes and succeeds in the market 
place; 
 

c) the risks of poor financial governance include fraud, misappropriation, material 
errors, regulatory penalties, poor decision making and reduced stakeholder 
confidence; 
 

d) Where companies are struggling financially, then a common issue has been one 
relating to inadequate financial governance. There are five key themes that are 
often seen where financial governance is weak: 

 
i. over-optimistic outlook; 
ii. poor financial planning; 
iii. inadequate financial information; 
iv. unclear ownership and accountability; 
v. lack of escalation of risks and exceptions; 

 
e) the ‘three lines of defence’ is a model commonly used in relation to risk 

management and the assurance framework in an organisation. For this 
Committee, the application of this model will improve the financial governance 
arrangements. Each line plays an important role and can help identify the early 
warning signs that financial governance is deteriorating. The ‘lines’ are: 

 

 First line - focuses on providing key financial information to the Committee so it 
is sighted on the key financials for the Company, as a key risk for the Council 
in relation to its Companies is its financial exposure. The use of forecasting 
tools for revenue, cash balances and loan repayments are controls for the 
Council to recognise at an early point if the companies will be in financial 
distress and who may require Council support in the form of cash injection or 
loan. These financial tools will also help infer to the likelihood of the company 
requesting a financial comfort support letter; 

 

 Second line - focuses on providing the business context of the Companies and 
is a useful connector to the Companies’ financial performance. This is a critical 
defence line as it includes the assurance provided by the shareholder 
representative that the company is delivering on its business strategies and 
highlights issues and opportunities around company/council governance.  
 
The monthly presentations to this Committee enable appropriate scrutiny of 
the company’s chief officers and their activities in delivering against agreed 
objectives, to provide the necessary assurance around financial, business and 
risk strategies. These presentations also act as a feedback/feedforward loop to 
both Council and Company on potential issues arising, functions that oversee 
or specialise in risk management, compliance and quality; 

 

 third line - acts as a check on the first two lines, that risks which will affect 
strategies are not being managed appropriately in terms of impact on 
achievement of business objective nor reflected in the financial reporting; 

 
The risk register, appetite and control framework enable the committee to be 
sighted on areas of concern such as a lack of management response to audit 
findings and delays to mitigation plans being actioned; 

 

Page 6



Companies Governance Executive Sub-Committee - 17.11.20 

5 

Annual testing of the committee’s scrutiny processes act as an important 
improvement tool to enable good company governance to be delivered. 

 
The Committee welcomed the 3-stage process, and commented that it would be a 
helpful tool and enhance the proposed training discussed in the previous item. 
 
Resolved to note the report. 
 
Reason for recommendation 
 
To provide the Committee with a process to enable it to strengthen its assurance and 
scrutiny functions and support the development of its future work programme. 
 
Other options considered 
 
None. 
 
66  Council owned companies: summary financial year-end position 2019-20 

 
This item does not contain any decisions that are eligible for call-in. 
 
Bipon Bhakri, Head of Finance (Commercial and Projects), presented the report, 
which provided information about Nottingham City Council ‘group’ companies, taken 
from the 2019/20 published and agreed draft accounts, the companies’ websites and 
their published annual report and accounts. 
 
The Committee commented that it was useful to see the information about the 
companies collated into one document, was good to see ‘successes’, and that it is 
helpful in highlighting any risks etc. 
 
Resolved to note the report. 
 
Reason for recommendation 
 
To provide the Committee with high level 2019/20 financial and operational 
performance information in regard to those subsidiaries which are part of the Council 
‘Group’, thereby supporting the development of the Committee in relation to better 
understanding the financial and operational performance of the ‘Group companies’. 
 
Other options considered 
 
None. 
 
67  Council owned company discussion: National Ice Centre - update 

 
This item does not contain any decisions that are eligible for call-in. 
 
The Committee received a presentation from Martin Ingham, Chief Executive of the 
National Ice Centre (NIC), detailing the: 
 

 history/background of the NIC; 

 sporting, cultural and economic legacy of the Arena; 

 strategic business objectives; 

Page 7



Companies Governance Executive Sub-Committee - 17.11.20 

6 

 legal and governance structure (including an overview of the Board membership 
and Sub-Committees, such as the Health and Safety Sub); 

 responses/actions arising from the ‘Public Interest Report’ recommendations; 

 impact of the covid pandemic, and responses to those challenges; 

 2020/21 trading position to date. 
 
During discussion, the Committee commented that the NIC and Arena are hugely 
important to the City and it is hoped that it will re-open as soon as possible, and it is 
sad that the company has had to make redundancies, but it has done the best it can 
in the current circumstances. 
 
In response to a request from Mr Ingham, the Committee stated that a meeting 
between representatives from NIC, Councillors, council finance officers and any other 
appropriate parties would be arranged. 
 
In response to a question regarding the ‘added value’ the Council shareholder brings 
to the company, Mr Ingham stated that it works well for NIC as the shareholder has a 
sports background and, due to direct contact, is able to provide clear messages in 
both directions as to what is expected from the NIC and the council. 
 
In response to a question regarding how other similar UK venues are coping in the 
current climate, and if different operating models make a difference, Mr Ingham 
stated that, other than those being used as ‘Nightingale Hospitals’, therefore 
receiving an income from Government for running costs etc, they are all in a similar 
position to NIC due to having to close and losing a major income stream from sports / 
live concerts / merchandise, regardless of which operating model they use. 
 
Resolved to note the presentation and thank the NIC representatives for their 
attendance. 
 
68  Work Plan - updated 

 
This item does not contain any decisions that are eligible for call-in. 
 
The Committee noted the work plan without discussion. 
 
69  Exclusion of the public 

 
The Committee agreed to exclude the public from the meeting during 
consideration of the remaining items in accordance with Section 100(A) of the 
Local Government Act 1972 on the basis that having regard to all the 
circumstances, the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the 
public interest in disclosing the information, as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 
of Schedule 12A to the Act, as the sensitive nature of the business affairs 
under consideration could, if made public, prejudice the ability of the 
companies concerned to operate effectively in a competitive market. 
 
70  Council owned company discussion: National Ice Centre - update 

 
This item does not contain any decisions that are eligible for call-in. 
 
The Committee received a presentation from Martin Ingham, Chief Executive of the 
National Ice Centre, detailing the latest financial position of the company. 
 

Page 8



Companies Governance Executive Sub-Committee - 17.11.20 

7 

The Committee stated that in respect of all council owned companies, there was a 
need to balance the needs of the company against the interests of the council and its 
citizens in regards to finance. 
 
Resolved to note the presentation and thank the NIC representatives for their 
attendance. 
 
71  Council owned companies: financial performance update 

 
This item does not contain any decisions that are eligible for call-in. 
 
Bipon Bhakri, Head of Finance (Commercial and Projects), presented the report, 
detailing monthly financial performance of the companies, as per a monthly return 
received from each company, and highlighted to the Committee two key areas of risk 
to the council’s own finances from (1) the potential loss of dividend/other income from 
the companies and (2) any potential loans and equity with the companies. 
 
Resolved to note the report. 
 
Reason for recommendation 
 
To provide the Committee with high-level financial information in regard to those 
companies which form part of the ‘Group’ for the Council, therefore supporting the 
development of the Committee in relation to better understanding the financial 
implications of the ‘Group companies’. 
 
Other options considered 
 
None. 
 
72  Council owned companies: summary financial year-end position 2019-20 

 
This item does not contain any decisions that are eligible for call-in. 
 
Bipon Bhakri, Head of Finance (Commercial and Projects), presented the report, 
detailing high-level information about the companies that the Council either wholly or 
partly own which form part of the ‘Group’, including the financial performance of the 
companies for 2019/20 and areas of concern for the Committee, the detail of which is 
taken from the 2019/20 published and agreed draft accounts. 
 
Resolved to note the report. 
 
Reason for recommendation 
 
To provide the Committee with high-level 2019/20 financial information in regard to 
those companies which form part of the ‘Group’ for the Council, therefore supporting 
the development of the Committee in relation to better understanding the financial 
implications of the ‘Group companies’. 
 
Other options considered 
 
None. 
 
 

Page 9



Companies Governance Executive Sub-Committee - 17.11.20 

8 

73  Exempt minutes 
 

The Committee agreed the exempt minutes of the meeting held on 20 October 2020 
as a correct record and they were signed by the Chair. 
 

Page 10



Companies Governance Executive Sub-Committee – 19 January 2021 
 

  

Subject: Governance Improvement Programme – Progress Update and Lessons 
Learnt   
 

Director: Director of Legal and Governance       

Portfolio Holder: Leader of the Council  

Report authors and 
contact details: 

Malcolm Townroe – Director of Legal and Governance 
Malcolm.townroe@nottinghamcity.gov.uk 
0115 876 4332 
 
Daniel Ayrton, Business Development Manager 
Daniel.ayrton@nottinghamcity.gov.uk 
0115 876 1830 
 

Other colleagues who 
have provided input: 

Connie Green – Solicitor  
Connie.green@nottinghamcity.gov.uk 
0115 876 5029      
 

Key Decision               Yes        No Subject to call-in      Yes           No 

Reasons:  Expenditure  Income  Savings of £1,000,000 or more 
taking account of the overall impact of the decision 

 Revenue   Capital  

Significant impact on communities living or working in two or more 
wards in the City  

 Yes      No  

Total value of the decision: Not applicable 

Wards affected: Relevant to all wards Date of consultation with Portfolio Holder: 
December 2020 

Relevant Council Plan Key Theme:   

Nottingham People  

Living in Nottingham  

Growing Nottingham  

Respect for Nottingham  

Serving Nottingham Better  

Summary of issues (including benefits to citizens/service users):  
 
1. This report and corresponding appendices provide the Sub-committee with the same update as 

provided to Full Council for its consideration on 11 January 2021.  Any resolutions by Full Council 

after its consideration of the report will also be provided to the Sub-committee at its meeting on 19 

January 2021.   

 

2. This is an update in response to the recommendations of the External Auditor in the Report in the 

Public Interest on Robin Hood Energy (the PIR). Nottingham City Council formally adopted an 

Action Plan in August 2020, that was subsequently amended in November 2020, setting out a 

series of actions to address the issues raised by the External Auditor.  

 

2.A Governance Improvement Programme has been established to deliver the Action Plan. This 

report provides an update on progress of the programme to date in delivering the actions.  

3.This report further captures and sets out the review outcomes and key considerations identified to 

date, in line with the actions set under Recommendation 10 of the Action Plan.  

Exempt information: None 

Page 11

Agenda Item 4

mailto:Malcolm.townroe@nottinghamcity.gov.uk
mailto:Daniel.ayrton@nottinghamcity.gov.uk
mailto:Connie.green@nottinghamcity.gov.uk


Recommendations:  
 

To note the following:  
 

1  the detail of progress made as contained in this report and corresponding appendices; and  
 

2  that the same report content has been submitted for full Council consideration at its meeting on 
the 11 January 2021 with the following recommendations having been made: 

 
(i)  that the report be noted; 
(ii)   the comments of the newly established Governance Improvement Board on the  progress to 

date and the lessons learned, as set out in Appendix 3 
(iii)  the comments of the Audit Committee on 18 December 2020 on the review of the 

appointment of councillors as Directors on Boards of Council owned and controlled 
companies, as set out in Appendix 4; and 

(iv) that amended draft terms of reference for the Overview and Scrutiny Committee are 
included for approval in the Amendments to the Constitution report on this agenda. 

 
The outcomes of full Council consideration against the above recommendations will be reported to 
the Sub-Committee at its meeting. 

 

3  Reasons for recommendations   

3.1  The Governance Improvement Programme was established to oversee the delivery of the 

City Council’s Action Plan responding to the PIR concerning the Council’s Governance 

Arrangements for Robin Hood Energy Ltd, and to review the wider governance issues at 

Nottingham City Council identified in the report.  

3.2  In response to Recommendation 10 of the PIR which reads; “In addition to those referred to 

in recommendations above, the Council should apply the lessons from Robin Hood Energy in 

a further review of its company governance arrangements, in particular to ensure that risks 

are appropriately flagged and managed, as well as successfully implementing the more 

robust monitoring agreed by the Companies Governance Executive Sub-Committee”, the City 

Council’s Action Plan requires that an overarching report covering the outcomes of the 

various reviews be produced in December 2020 and brought to Full Council for 

consideration.  

3.3  One of the key requirements of the PIR and Action Plan was the establishment of an 

Improvement Board to oversee delivery and drive progress against the PIR Action Plan, to 

support improvement in the Council’s wider governance arrangements, and to ensure that a 

range of voices, including those independent of the Council, contribute to the development of 

improved governance at Nottingham City Council.  

 

3.4  Included at Appendix 3 are the draft minutes of the first meeting of the Nottingham City 

Council Governance Improvement Board which include the comments, questions and 

observations of the Board members at the meeting on 9 December 2020.  

4  Background (including outcomes of consultation)  

4.1  The External Auditor published the PIR on Robin Hood Energy in August 2020. The report 

highlighted a number of areas for improvement, with regard to the Council’s governance 

arrangements for its companies.  

Page 12



4.2  The report also recommended a broader review of the Council’s governance and decision 

making processes be undertaken.  

4.3  The findings of the PIR were accepted by the Council and an Action Plan drawn up to 

address the issues raised. The Action Plan was formally approved by the Council on 30 

August 2020. The Action Plan was subsequently amended by Council on 9 November 2020.  

 

4.4  The Action Plan has 13 recommendations from the External Auditor and an additional 3 

recommendations from the Council, with a clear set of actions. There is a programme of 

improvement work to deliver the actions in the plan, with a dedicated Project Management 

Office to lead delivery of the programme. Dedicated workstream leads cover the key areas, 

and the council owned companies are involved.  

4.5  Following the publication of the PIR into Robin Hood Energy the Ministry of Housing, 

Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) confirmed its intention to carry out a rapid 

Non-Statutory Review (NSR) of Nottingham City Council.  The review was led by Max Caller 

CBE, a former local authority Chief Executive, and it commenced on 27 October 2020 and 

concluded on 27 November 2020 when a report was submitted to MHCLG.  

4.6  The report’s findings add to and expand on the PIR. The NSR made eight recommendations 

to the Council and to MHCLG. These include recommendations that the Council should:  

• Produce a three-year recovery plan by January 2021 to set out the actions needed to 

restore the financial viability of its capital programme and revenue budget and 

implement a more robust medium-term financial planning process. The plan should be 

overseen by a new Improvement Board established by MHCLG in partnership with the 

Council and led by a strong, independent chair with sector experience with members 

appointed as non-executive directors/mentors to support and improve performance.  

• Review its constitution within six months to ensure that the roles and responsibilities of 

members and officers and the framework within which they operate to clearly define 

decision-making processes, performance management and procedures within the 

Council.  

• Conduct an in-depth assessment of its group of companies during the first year of the 

Improvement Plan and integrate conclusions within the medium-term financial planning 

process to determine the future status of each company as part of the council group.  

• Produce a clear policy statement within six months which establishes the roles and 

responsibilities of nominated non-executive directors and shareholder representatives 

and incorporates it as an element of the Constitution, ensuring that this relationship is 

clearly defined within all council owned company agreements within a further six 

months.  

4.7  MHCLG have now published the report and provided a written response agreeing with the 

recommendations of the NSR and outlining their intention to support the City Council by 

establishing an Improvement and Assurance Board. This body will also provide regular 

quarterly reports to the Secretary of State.   

4.8  Whilst the completion and publication of the NSR findings marks an important transition on 

the City Council’s improvement journey, it is not the start and a number of important steps 

have already been taken.  

4.9  Since the adoption of the Council Plan in November 2019, the leadership of the Council have 

embarked on a series of significant changes in order to strengthen both the governance and 

Page 13



financial stability of the Council, including establishing the Companies Governance Executive 

Sub-Committee and launching a Strategic Review of Robin Hood Energy resulting in a 

decision to dispose of the customer book to British Gas.   

4.10 There have also been considerable changes to the senior management of the Council 

following the departure of the previous Chief Executive in April 2020, including the 

appointment of a new Chief Executive to drive forward Council policy and the appointment of 

an interim Chief Finance Officer to deliver medium term revenue and capital sustainability.   

4.11 The Council has also produced a mid-year budget refresh for the 2020-21 financial year 

including significant in year savings proposals. Further savings proposals are being 

developed at pace to bridge the projected budget gap in 2021-22.  

5  Progress Update  

5.1  The actions to date have been delivered at pace through the Governance Improvement 

Programme, with robust internal discussion and challenge, including from Audit Committee 

and Overview and Scrutiny Committee. Going forward, greater external assurance is being 

sought to improve the robustness, transparency and credibility of the action the Council is 

taking in response the recommendations of the PIR.  

5.2  On 9 December, the newly established Governance Improvement Board met for the first 

time. The establishment of the Improvement Board is a significant step forward in improving 

Nottingham City Council’s governance and decision making arrangements in response to the 

PIR, allowing greater transparency, accountability and external scrutiny of the City Council’s 

governance and decision making processes.  

5.3  The Governance Improvement Board is a politically balanced committee of Council, 

established to oversee the delivery of the Action Plan responding to the Report in the Public 

Interest concerning the Council’s Governance Arrangements for Robin Hood Energy Ltd (the 

PIR) and to review wider governance issues at Nottingham City Council. The Committee is 

accountable to Council and will provide progress reports to Council every six months.  

5.4  The Board’s objectives are to:  

• steer the implementation of the PIR Action Plan and wider governance improvements;  

• monitor progress on the implementation of the PIR Action Plan;  

• assess Nottingham City Council’s current governance arrangements and identify and 

make recommendations to Council on areas for improvement;   

• review the Constitution in relation to governance improvement and recommend 

amendments to the Leader in relation to executive matters and to Council for non-

executive matters;  

• identify best practice and gather views on matters within the Board’s remit from relevant 

internal and external sources, including the appointed co-opted members and members 

of the Executive, Overview and Scrutiny Committees and the Audit Committee;  

• make decisions, including spending decisions relating to non-executive areas of the 

governance improvement programme; and  

• make recommendations to the Executive on executive areas of the governance 

improvement programme.  

Page 14



5.5  Membership of the Governance Improvement Board consists of 10 members, including two 

co-opted independent members, Professor Peter Murphy from Nottingham Trent University 

and Mark Edgell, the Local Government Association’s Principal Advisor. 

  

5.6  Professor Peter Murphy has been appointed Vice Chair. In addition to his role as Director of 

Public Policy at Nottingham Trent University, Peter also has a track record of research 

focussed on public policy, governance, scrutiny and value for money arrangements of locally 

delivered services. Peter spent 23 years in Local Government, most recently as Chief 

Executive of Melton Borough Council and prior to joining Nottingham Trent University, he was 

a Senior Civil Servant in Whitehall.  

5.7  Mark Edgell is an experienced leader and non-executive director with extensive experience 

of working in local government and the former Leader of Rotherham Metropolitan Borough 

Council. Mark will add further rigour to the programme in the weeks and months ahead.  

5.8  The membership of the Governance Improvement Board consists of four members of the 

Executive, including the Leader of the Council, the Chairs of both the Overview and Scrutiny 

and Audit Committees, a representative of the minority political groups and two independent 

members. Full Terms of Reference (TOR) and membership for the Board are included in 

Appendix 2.  

5.9 The Governance Improvement Board will have a key role to play in providing robust challenge 

to the Council’s improvement programme. The Improvement Board will provide assurance 

that the actions being taken in response to the PIR are appropriate and credible.  

5.10 During the period up to and including December 2020, the actions taken by the Council have 

focused on reviewing current Nottingham City Council governance arrangements against 

best practice from a broad range of sources to identify specific areas for improvement and 

opportunities to strengthen current arrangements.  

5.11 Appendix 1: “Governance Improvement Programme – Progress Update” sets out the actions 

that have been taken against each of the 13 recommendations of the PIR. The outcomes of 

the review work are summarised below.  

6  Review  

6.1  Where Nottingham City Council does not have overall board control, it is especially important 

for reserved matters to be established in a shareholders’ agreement or comparable 

agreement, as is the case with Nottingham City Transport and Nottingham City Homes.  

6.2  Four subsidiaries have 100% of their board comprised of current or former Nottingham City 

Council officers and councillors, and therefore the Council will need to consider how it 

strengthens the independent check and challenge identified by the best practice review 

moving forward. Furthermore, additional sectoral knowledge is required in a Non-Executive 

capacity on the boards of Enviroenergy and Nottingham Revenue and Benefits to effectively 

hold management to account.  

6.3  Enviroenergy is the subject of strategic review and options appraisals, and additional support 

arrangements have been put in place during the period of the review. Completion of this 

review has been highlighted by the NSR as a priority for the Council and progress towards 

this aim is already underway.  

 

6.4  As a consequence of the work undertaken in response to the PIR, a Strategic Review of 

Nottingham Revenue and Benefits should be considered as a priority.   

Page 15



6.5  Of the other two companies in which 100% of the board members are either Councillors or 

Council Officers, one is Robin Hood Energy, which is the subject of the strategic review 

outlined under recommendation one and has commissioned significant support from industry 

experts. 

 

6.6  Where Nottingham City Council has appointed directors to company boards, they are 

overwhelmingly drawn from the elected members rather than Council Officers with only two 

Officer appointments out of 25 Nottingham City Council appointees.  

6.7  The review of best practice identified many examples of Councillors acting as directors for 

Local Authority controlled subsidiaries, and found no reason to recommend the exclusion of 

Councillors from acting as directors. There is however, an over reliance on elected members 

to serve as unpaid directors and the use of Executive Councillors, particularly members of 

the Companies’ Governance Executive Sub-Committee, gives rise to difficult conflicts of 

interest that are more challenging to resolve.  

6.8  The stated purpose of the Sub-Committee is; “to approve and oversee the Council's strategic 

objectives across the Nottingham City Council group of companies, and to support the 

development of the Group in line with the Council's regulations and ambitions”. Three of the 

five current Councillor members are also directors of subsidiary companies. The Leader of 

the Council and Chair of the Sub-Committee also holds a directorship on Blueprint, a non-

subsidiary company limited by shares.  

 

6.9  Additional measures are needed to improve the quality of record keeping for Councillor 

development, including training course content and attendance. This is not to say that 

training hasn’t taken place, and there are anecdotal accounts of such training being 

delivered, however moving forward the Council should use the corporate training system to 

manage and record the delivery of Councillor training, including refresher training.  

 

6.10  A review of the employment history and technical background of directors other than 

Nottingham City Council appointees has been conducted, and provides reasonable 

assurance that appropriate levels of knowledge and experience are present in aggregate in 

the boards on which they serve.  

6.11  The review of best practice has emphasised the importance of diversity in the composition of 

boards in terms of gender, ethnicity, age and length of service. This information was not 

available in the period of the review. It is recommended that consideration be given to 

incorporate metrics on board composition and diversity into the company performance 

monitoring arrangements and that this information be used to inform succession-planning 

arrangements.  

6.12  The review of best practice has identified a need for a clear mechanism for exercising the 

rights and controls of shareholder or member. This has particular relevance to the 

appointments process for directors, which should be strengthened. It is considered good 

practice for the role and rights of shareholder and member to be consolidated in an Executive 

Committee of the Council and it is therefore proposed that the Terms of Reference of the 

Companies Governance Executive Sub-Committee be amended to this effect.  

 

6.13  The current shareholder representative function has been reviewed. While these 

arrangements are currently sufficient, further consideration will also be given to the capacity 

of shareholder representatives in the longer term and their role in relation to the shareholder 

panel identified in the best practice review.  

Page 16



6.14  In-house refresher training on the legal duties of company directors has been produced and 

delivery of the training commenced in November. The training specification for more 

specialised training provision has been shared with a number of providers and a technical 

solution is being sought for remote delivery. 

 

6.15  As the Council progresses the PIR Action Plan and NSR Recovery and Improvement Plan 

there is a need to assess, challenge and reset the cultural norms and expectations of Officers 

and Councillors.  

6.16  All training delivered has been and will continue to be managed through the City Council’s 

Corporate Training System. This will ensure proper recording of course content, attendance 

and completion as well as ensure periodic refresher training is undertaken.  

6.17  A review of the existing Audit Committee Terms of Reference has been undertaken against 

identified Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) best practice. This 

review found minor differences in respect of reporting which have not affected Audit 

Committee business. With the exception of independent external members, no other factors 

were identified from CIPFA best practice.  

6.18  Notwithstanding the above, the current wording of the Audit Committee Terms of Reference 

does not adequately set out the relationship with Companies Governance Executive Sub-

Committee, Overview and Scrutiny Committee, companies’ assurance arrangements, 

independent members, and other roles which may be held by the Chair. A draft revision has 

been produced and independent expert advice sought from CIPFA.  

 

6.19  The terms of reference for the Audit Committee and Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

currently allow for members to hold directorships in Council subsidiaries. This is not 

consistent with best practice and has the potential to undermine the assurance role of the 

Committee with regard to Companies Governance Executive Sub-Committee and the 

companies within the Council group.  

6.20  When considering changes to the membership and composition of company boards 

consideration should also be given to ensuring there is a managed transition over time in 

order to avoid excessive disruption to Council companies.  

6.21  A review of the existing Overview and Scrutiny Committee Terms of Reference has been 

undertaken against identified best practice. This review has identified changes to the Terms 

of Reference that would provide greater clarity on the role of the Committee, particularly in 

relation to Council owned companies, Companies Governance Executive Sub-Committee 

and Audit Committee. 

 

6.22  In response to LGA feedback, further amendments have been drafted including the addition 

of reference to risk management.   

6.23  The Commissioning and Procurement Executive Sub-Committee, although not mentioned in 

the Auditor’s report, has a role in protecting the client interests of the Council and Value for 

Money, where the Council awards contracts to subsidiary companies. The review of 

Committee Terms of Reference has therefore been extended to include this Committee. 

 

6.24  Following the formal change to Companies Governance Executive Sub-Committee Terms of 

Reference to enshrine shareholder rights, Shareholder representatives should work with the 

Committee to establish clear shareholder financial, strategic and policy objectives for each 

company.  

Page 17



6.25  The Council’s Corporate Risk Management Framework has been reviewed and updated to 

incorporate wider risks from the group of companies. The corporate risk register has also 

been updated to include strategic risks from the group.  

6.26  Individual company risk registers have been provided for incorporation into the overall 

framework for risk management.  

6.27  These currently lean heavily towards financial risks. These should be reviewed again 

following the establishment of clear shareholder objectives for each company to reflect risks 

to the broader organisational goals.  

6.28  In accordance with revised Action Plan agreed by Council on 9 November 2020, at its 

meeting on 18 December 2020 the Audit Committee considered a report in relation to the 

appointment of councillors as Directors on Boards of Council owned and controlled 

companies, and made comments attached at Appendix 4.  

 
7 Other options considered in making recommendation 
 
7.1 Nottingham City Council accepted in full the recommendations of the Public Interest 

Report and has endorsed the Corporate Action Plan to deliver the required remedial 
actions in response. Therefore, no other options were considered. 

 
8. Finance colleague comments (including implications and value for money/VAT) 

 
8.1 The response to the PIR is being managed within existing resources and as such 

there is no direct additional cost with the exception of work commissioned through 
CIPFA on the current and future trading prospects of each Council-owned company 
and the reasons for holding that interest. A budget of £44,000 has been set aside for 
this work.  

 
8.2  Any further expenditure required as a result of the PIR and NSR will be taken through 

the appropriate boards for endorsement and once funding identified, through the 

appropriate constitutional approval process.  

Ceri Walters  

Head of Commercial Finance  

23 December 2020  

 
9 Legal and Procurement colleague comments (including risk management issues, 

and including legal, Crime and Disorder Act and procurement implications) 
 
9.1 Any legal issues that have arisen as a result of the PIR have been addressed in 

previous reports to Council. There are no further legal issues arising out of this report.  
 

Malcolm Townroe  

Director of Legal & Governance  

23 December 2020  

 
10. Social value considerations 

 
10.1 Not applicable.  

 
11. Regard to the NHS Constitution 

 
11.1 Not applicable.  

Page 18



 
12. Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) 
 
 Has the equality impact of the proposals in this report been assessed?  
 No                  

An EIA is not required because the report does not request any formal decision to be 

taken at this stage.  

13. List of background papers relied upon in writing this report (not including published 
documents or confidential or exempt information) 
 

13.1 None. 
 
14.  Published documents referred to in compiling this report  
 
14.1  Public Interest Report from the External Auditor.  

14.2  Nottingham City Council Action Plan in response to the PIR.  

14.3  Non-Statutory Review Nottingham City Council – November 2020.  

14.4  Letter from the Secretary of State 17 December 2020.  

14.5  Minutes of the Governance Improvement Board meeting held on 9 December 

2020.  

14.6  Minutes of the Audit Committee meeting held on 18 December 2020.  

15  Appendices  

15.1  Appendix 1 – Progress Against PIR Recommendations  

15.2  Appendix 2 – Nottingham City Council Governance Improvement Board Terms 

of Reference  

15.3  Appendix 3 – Nottingham City Council Governance Improvement Board Minutes 

9 December 2020  

15.4  Appendix 4 – Comments of Audit Committee on 18 December 2020  

 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



 Appendix 1 – Governance Improvement Programme Progress Update 

Recommendation 1: Using the current Strategic Review and other appropriate advice to assist with decision-making, the Council should urgently 
determine the future of Robin Hood Energy, with options properly evaluated and risks properly assessed. This assessment should also take into account 
the context of the Council’s current financial position. 
 

 
In March 2020, prior to the publication of the PIR, Nottingham City Council launched a strategic review of Robin Hood Energy with a view to determining 
the long term future of the company. At the same time, the company, at the direction of the Council as shareholder, appointed external advisors with 
significant industry experience to take over the management of the company and support the strategic review process. 

The Strategic Review has considered a range of options for the future direction of Robin Hood Energy culminating in the decision to dispose of the 
customer book through an agreement with Centrica, the parent company of British Gas. This decision is consistent with the aim of resolving the Council’s 
financial exposure while minimising the final cost of doing so. 

From the 4th of September, Robin Hood Energy began the transfer of its customers to British Gas a process that will conclude in early 2021. 

 

 

Recommendation 2: The Council should review its overall approach to using Councillors on the boards of its subsidiary companies and other similar 
organisations. This should be informed by a full understanding of the role of and legal requirements for company Board members. 
 

 
Between September and November 2020, the Council has undertaken a review of best practice with regard to Council owned companies alongside a 
review of the current and historic practice of the City Council. This review identified many examples of Councillors acting as directors for Local Authority 
controlled subsidiaries and found no reason to recommend the exclusion of Councillors from acting as directors. There is however, an over reliance on 
elected members to serve as unpaid directors and the use of Executive Councillors, particularly members of the Companies’ Governance Executive 
Sub-Committee, gives rise to difficult conflicts of interest that are more challenging to resolve.  

The Lawyers in Local Government Example Best Practice Code states that “whilst it will therefore be the norm that officers, not members, will be 
appointed as directors, this should not prevent the Council from appointing Members as directors where that is considered to be in the best interests of 
the company and the Council.” 

Similarly the 2016 Grant Thornton review of group governance at Birmingham City Council included in its recommendations that “entity boards will 

P
age 21



remain a combination of elected members and NEDs.” 

In both cases however, the guidance highlights the inability of Councillors to waive any conflict of interest they may have in their role as Councillor, 
thereby preventing them from participating in any decision making process in relation to the company. 

For these reasons, it is not proposed that a blanket restriction on Councillor appointments to Council company directorships be adopted. Instead, it 
should be considered that restrictions on membership for Executive and Non-Executive Committees with a role in the governance of Council owned 
companies be drafted into their terms of reference. This is addressed under recommendations six and nine of the auditor’s report and Nottingham City 
Council’s own recommendation three. 

The review has also considered the powers of the Council as shareholder or member to control the composition of company boards through the 
appointment and removal of directors. The ability to appoint directors is ordinarily laid out in the articles of association for each company. For companies 
limited by shares, this power is commonly held by shareholders who may exercise it through ordinary resolution. The board of directors themselves may 
also hold the same power, either with shareholder consent required – for example at the next AGM following appointment – or without consent. 

For companies limited by guarantee without share capital, the appointment of directors is often tied directly to membership where each member is able 
to nominate a certain number of directors. In the case of charitable trust these directors will usually also serve as trustees. 

For the Council to maintain effective control of the composition of the company board, the right to appoint must be exclusively reserved by the 
shareholder or member. A review of the articles of association for all subsidiary companies has been undertaken. This initial review has found five of the 
eight subsidiary companies whose articles do not exclusively reserve the right of appointment to NCC. It is suggested that the Council should prioritise 
amending the provisions of these Articles to ensure control of appointments and removals are retained by the Council. 

 

 

Recommendation 3: Where it continues to use Councillors in such roles, it should ensure that the non-executives (including Councillors) on the relevant 
board have, in aggregate, the required knowledge and experience to challenge management. This is of particular importance where the company is 
operating in a specialised sector which is outside the normal experience of Councillors. 
 

 

The level of individual knowledge and expertise required of directors will in large part depend on the purpose of their appointment to the board. In the 
case of Councillors appointed to company boards, they bring significant experience and understanding of their local communities, the Council’s vision for 
the City and expectations and experiences of citizens. Where a company’s primary areas of operation are concerned with these dynamics, Councillors 
are able to make extremely valuable contributions to the goals of the organisation. While a Councillor may also bring additional experiences, knowledge 
and skills from roles outside local democracy, it is questionable whether this can be relied on in the long term as the sole means of bringing industry 
expertise to the board. 

P
age 22



A review of the employment history and technical background of directors other than NCC Councillors and Officers has also been conducted. 
Nottingham City Homes and Nottingham City Transport both have non-executive directories including independent non-executive directors with 
considerable combined experience in property management and housing. Nottingham City Homes also benefits from the inclusion of tenant board 
members, who are able to provide a valuable alternative perspective to board decisions. 

Similarly, the board of Nottingham Ice Centre Limited includes five non-executive directors (other than those who are NCC Officers or Councillors), all of 
whom have other directorship experience and a range of professional qualifications. It is reasonable to accept that in these companies’ sufficient industry 
skills and experience exists among the non-executive board members to hold the management of the companies to account. 

The recently acquired company Thomas Bow has a board consisting of three executive directors, each with considerable experience in the relevant 
industrial sector, and one Councillor who is also an Executive Councillor. While the required knowledge and skills clearly exist at the board level, the 
industry expertise is consolidated exclusively among executive directors without a realistic prospect of independent challenge from an industry expert. 
Consideration ought to be given to the appointment of an independent non-executive director, or to whether NCC Officers with experience in highways 
construction contracts or similar might provide valuable challenge to the board. 

The remaining four subsidiaries have no directors other than NCC Officers or Councillors and on the face of it, are likely to lack the level of sector specific 
expertise required. It is important to note that one of those companies is Robin Hood Energy, which is the subject of the strategic review outlined under 
recommendation one and has commissioned significant support from industry experts.  

The remaining two companies are Enviroenergy and Nottingham Revenue and Benefits. Enviroenergy is itself the subject of strategic review linked to 
the Council’s district heating infrastructure and waste processing arrangements. The strategic significance and complexity of the overarching project is 
well understood by the Council and has also been identified by the NSR as a strategic priority for the Council. 

As part of the Council’s response to the broader question of Council owned companies raised under Nottingham City Council’s own recommendation 
one and reiterated by the NSR, Nottingham Revenue and Benefits has been identified as a priority for a Strategic Review in 2021. 

Control of the appointment and removal of directors as outlined under recommendation 2 is also of importance here. 

 

 

Recommendation 4: Where Councillors are used in such roles, the Council should ensure that the Councillors are provided with sufficient and 
appropriate training, which is updated periodically. 
 

 

Regardless of the varying roles different directors may have, it is essential that all NCC Councillors and Officers are equipped with the basic core 
competencies and understanding of the legal duties and liabilities associated with their position. 

Advice on the core competencies and training required to effectively discharge the duties of directors has been sought from appropriately qualified 

P
age 23



external bodies which, alongside guidance found in the review of best practice, has been used to produce a list of training requirements. 

A review of training records for Councillors and Officers serving on company boards has been undertaken to identify any previous training that would 
meet these requirement either in full or in part. Whilst there are instances of training and professional development that would certainly contribute to 
being an effective board member, there is limited evidence of training to enable them to fully and effectively execute the duties of directors.  

This is not say that training hasn’t taken place, and there are anecdotal accounts of such training being delivered, but the record keeping of attendance 
and course content does not provide a robust basis to form a judgement on the sufficiency of such training. The gap is partly explained by Councillor 
training records having only transferred to the Corporate system in 2018, however, in the absence of a clear record it is recommended that all Councillors 
serving in the role of company directors regardless of whether it is a wholly owned subsidiary. 

A training and development framework for Councillors serving in the capacity of directors has been produced. This is a tiered approach building on the 
foundational skills developed by Councillors through existing induction and refresher training with additional training covering: 

 The role of a company director 

 Legal obligations for directors 

 Company structures 

 Board effectiveness 

 Risk Management 

 Corporate culture and corporate social responsibility 

A training specification has been produced and proposals sought from three well established and well regarded bodies with relevant experience. It is 
anticipated that this training will be commissioned and rolled out from the end of January 2021, subject to contract. 

As an immediate measure, Nottingham City Council has developed and delivered its own internal training course for Councillors acting as directors. 

 

 

Recommendation 5: The Council should ensure that all elements of its governance structure, including the shareholder role, are properly defined and 
that those definitions are effectively communicated to the necessary individuals. 
 

 

The elements of the Council’s governance structure are set out in the Council’s constitution. In particular, the Terms of Reference for Committees which 
sets out the distinctions between Executive, Non-Executive and Scrutiny functions and the roles of different Committees with regard to decision making. 

Reviews have been undertaken of the Terms of Reference for Audit Committee, Overview & Scrutiny Committee and Companies Governance 
Executive Sub-Committee. A redraft of the Audit Committee Terms of Reference has been produced and at the time of writing further advice and 

P
age 24



challenge was being sought from CIPFA with a view to bringing a version for formal adoption to Council in early 2021. 

A review of the existing Overview and Scrutiny Committee terms of reference has been undertaken against identified best practice. This review redrafted 
the Terms of Reference in order to provide clarity on the role of the committee, particularly in relation to Council owned companies, CGESC and Audit 
Committee. A draft of the proposed Terms of Reference for Overview & Scrutiny Committee has been presented to and accepted by the Committee and 
is appended to this report for formal adoption as detailed in the recommendations of this report.   

The review of best practice has identified a need for a clear mechanism for exercising the rights and controls of shareholder or member. This has 
particular relevance to the appointments process (for Councillor and Officer directorships), that should be strengthened. It is considered good practice for 
the role and rights of shareholder and member to be consolidated in an Executive Committee of the Council and for this reason consideration should be 
given to amending the Terms of Reference of the Companies Governance Executive Sub-Committee accordingly. 

A redraft of the Terms of Reference has not been produced at this stage in order that any changes also take into consideration the findings of the 
recently published NSR, however, it is proposed that the following addition be made to the purpose of the Committee: 

“To discharge the executive functions of Shareholder, Member or Guarantor of companies within the Nottingham City Council Group and companies in 
which Nottingham City Council holds shares or membership rights.” 

In addition it is proposed that the following additions be made to the listed responsibilities of the committee in its terms of reference: 

Consider matters reserved to the Council for shareholder approval, such as: 

 Varying Articles of Association 

 Varying ownership and structure including the formation of subsidiaries to any company 

 Variations to shares (number of, rights, etc.) 

 Entering contracts that; have a material effect on NCC Council business (including other companies within the group), are outside of the 
business plan or do not relate to the business, or are significant in relation to the size of the business, the business plan, etc. 

 Material legal proceedings outside of ordinary business 

 Adopting and amending business plans each year and strategic plans (3 years) 

 Appointment, removal and the remuneration of directors (members of the company board) 

 Selection of the chair of the board 

 Appointment of auditors 

 Issue of dividends 

In parallel, the role of the Shareholder Representative (as distinct from shareholder) has been considered at Companies Governance Executive Sub-
Committee on the 20th of October 2020, and a subsequent draft role description and competency requirements produced. 

The Commissioning & Procurement Executive Sub-Committee, although not mentioned in the Auditor’s report, has a role in protecting the client interests 
of the Council and VfM, where the Council awards contracts to subsidiary companies. Proposals will also be developed and brought forward for the 

P
age 25



Commissioning & Procurement Executive Sub-Committee. 

 

 

Recommendation 6: When allocating roles on Council-owned organisations to individual Councillors, the Council should ensure that the scope for 
conflicts of interest is minimised, with a clear divide between those in such roles and those responsible for holding them to account or overseeing them. 
 

 

In response to recommendation six of the external auditor’s report, Nottingham City Council has reviewed its process for appointments to company 
boards. The review process has also highlighted the potential to minimise the scope for conflicts of interest through restrictions on membership in the 
Terms of Reference of key Committees. 

The use of membership restrictions in this way has been presented to Audit Committee for discussion on the 18th of December 2020. The Committee 
has concurred with the view that restrictions on membership should exclude Executive Members who hold directorships from membership of Companies 
Governance Executive Sub-Committee. 

In addition Audit Committee have given a view that where practical, Executive Members ought not hold directorships in Council companies whose 
primary activity falls within the scope of their portfolio. In relation to this point, the Committee has requested further clarification of the role of Portfolio 
Holders in relation to companies of this kind and the proper alignment of company’s policy objectives to those of the Council. 

Appointment / nomination to Outside Bodies is a Local Choice Function and NCC has determined that it is an Executive Function. Appointments / 
nominations are therefore approved by Executive Board, an Area Committee or, for in-year changes, the Director for Legal and Governance. Executive 
Board is responsible for the majority of approvals with Area Committees being responsible for nominations / appointments to Outside Bodies that 
operate exclusively within their area. 

While these provisions provide a framework for the general case of appointments to Outside Bodies, they do not address the specifics of exercising the 
shareholder rights to appoint to a company board. In the case of an appointment made by the existing board of directors (where they have the right to do 
so), the above provision would have little or no effect. 

It is proposed that the nominations and appointments process for Directors of all NCC companies be rationalised. This should include a record of the 
decision to indemnify Officers or Councillors appointed as directors. 

By virtue of the Local Authorities (Indemnities for Members and Officers) Order 2004, officers or members may be indemnified by the authority for 
actions undertaken for or at the direction of the authority (within certain limitations), including in any role they take as the director of a Council company. 
While there is specific insurance provision for a range of eventualities there is no explicit communication or confirmation of the indemnification offered by 
the Council to the individual.  

It is also recommended that a robust system for recording the decisions of the shareholder/member, including appointments and nominations of 

P
age 26



directors, be established. In addition it is recommended that the details of all decisions for appointments and current board memberships be published on 
the Council website. 

 

 

Recommendation 7: The Council should ensure that risks relating to its companies are considered for inclusion in its overall risk management 
processes, with appropriate escalation and reporting, rather than being seen in isolation. 
 

 

On the 24th of November the City Council approved a refreshed Corporate Risk Management Framework, including risk registers for each Council 
Company and an integrating strategic risks from the company group as a whole into the high level corporate risk register. 

In light of the NSR findings and subsequent Recovery and Improvement Plan, effective risk management will continue to be a central consideration for 
the Council and the Corporate Risk Register will remain under continual review. 

 

 

Recommendation 8: As the new arrangements for monitoring companies are rolled out alongside the Companies Governance Executive Sub-
Committee (CGESC), the Council should ensure that financial information is provided in accordance with its requirements and is fully understood by the 
Sub-Committee and others involved in holding the companies to account, and that robust action, with the oversight of the s151 officer, is taken if suitable 
information is not provided. 
 

 

The Companies Governance Executive Sub-Committee has established clear reporting mechanisms for each company in the group. This includes the 
changes to the Corporate Risk Management Framework referred to under recommendation 7 alongside key indicators of financial performance.  

The Committee is advised by the Section 151 Officer, Monitoring Office and Chief Executive to support them in holding companies to account and 
ensuring full compliance with these reporting requirements. 

In addition to these arrangements, consideration has been given to introducing additional controls including the establishment of an Officer Shareholder 
Executive to sit alongside the Companies Governance Executive Sub-Committee as well as the introduction of Company Loans protocol to scrutinise the 
borrowing requirements of individual companies. The NSR has identified similar requirements and it is proposed that these considerations be further 
developed through the implementation of the Recovery and Improvement Plan. 

 

P
age 27



 

Recommendation 9: Within the new arrangements involving the Companies Governance Executive Sub-committee, the Council needs to ensure that 
responsibilities for scrutiny and risk management are given sufficient prominence, including giving the Audit Committee explicit responsibility for scrutiny 
of governance and risk management across the group. 
 

  

 As outlined under recommendation five, the City Council has reviewed the terms of reference for Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 
Companies Governance Executive Sub-Committee and Audit Committee as well as bringing forward proposals to further review the Terms of 
Reference for the Commissioning & Procurement Executive Sub-Committee. 

 The review of the existing Overview and Scrutiny Committee redrafted the Terms of Reference in order to provide clarity on the role of 
the committee, particularly in relation to Council owned companies, CGESC and Audit Committee. Input was sought from the LGA on the draft 
and, as a result of their feedback, further amendment was made, including the addition of reference to risk management.  

 The draft has been taken to Overview & Scrutiny Committee on 9th December 2020 and is brought forward for approval at this meeting 
of full Council. 

 At the time of writing redraft of the Audit Committee Terms of Reference has been produced and at the time of writing further advice and 
challenge was being sought from CIPFA with a view to bringing a version for formal adoption to Council in early 2021. 

 

 

Recommendation 10: In addition to those referred to in recommendations above, the Council should apply the lessons from Robin Hood Energy in a 
further review of its company governance arrangements, in particular to ensure that risks are appropriately flagged and managed, as well as successfully 
implementing the more robust monitoring agreed by the Companies Governance Executive Sub-Committee 

 
The production of this report for consideration by full Council is intended to respond to recommendation 10 of the PIR. In light of the recently published 
NSR, the broader findings and lessons learnt will naturally feed into the Recovery and Improvement Plan. Consideration should be given to the extent of 
overlap between the Action Plan in response to the PIR and the Recovery and Improvement Plan in response to the NSR.  
  

 

Recommendation 11: As part of this review, the Council should consider the appropriateness of the definition of the shareholder role adopted in the 
2019 report and give it an emphasis on protection of the Council’s financial interests alongside other elements.  
 

P
age 28



As outlined under recommendation five, the role of the Shareholder Representative (as distinct from shareholder) has been considered at Companies 
Governance Executive Sub-Committee on the 20th of October 2020, and a subsequent draft role description and competency requirements has been 
produced for consideration. 

Shareholder Representatives are in place for seven of the eight subsidiaries. During the period of the review the current Interim Director of Strategic 
Finance has been appointed Shareholder Representative for Nottingham Revenue and Benefits to replace his predecessor. While these arrangements 
are currently sufficient, further consideration will also be given to the capacity of shareholder representatives in the longer term and their role in relation to 
the shareholder panel identified in the best practice review. 

 

 

Recommendation 12: The Council should use the experience of owning RHE to consider whether there are any lessons for its wider governance, 
particularly in relation to the ‘checks and balances’ which need to be in place, including the need for a stronger monitoring and scrutiny function and 
moving to a culture in which challenge of political priorities and how they are being implemented is seen as a positive. 
 

 

Nottingham City Council has already started the process of reviewing and improving its system of governance and internal control. The City Council’s 
response to the PIR details the actions the City Council is taking and will take up to June 2021. 

The subsequent report of the NSR team builds on findings and recommendations of the external auditor, and as a result there is significant overlap in the 
actions and activities required by both. In order to streamline management and reporting arrangements and maximise the efficient use of limited 
resources consideration should be given to which activities are best managed and delivered through Governance Improvement Programme and which 
would be better rolled into the overall Improvement Programme. 

The Nottingham City Council Constitution has been the subject of review since October, following the adoption by full Council of the Action plan in 
response to the PIR. 

This work focuses primarily on the Committee structure and functions and on the their Terms of Reference. This work will now continue alongside a 
comprehensive rewriting of the whole constitution with the aim of simplifying it and enabling the Council to make effective decisions and implement the 
broader change programme at the rate required. 

This work will create greater separation and independence between the Executive and Non-Executive roles within the constitution and strengthen the 
roles of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee and Audit Committee. 

The NSR has highlighted the need to bring greater clarity to different roles of Councillors and officers, and their responsibilities to the organisation as a 
whole. To this end it is proposed that a new Member Officer Protocol be adopted to help set a common set of shared expectations for officers and 
Councillors. 

P
age 29



 

 

Recommendation 13: The Council should ensure that it reflects the financial pressures arising from RHE alongside those from covid-19, demand-led 
services and other areas to produce balanced and achievable financial plans for the current year and for the medium-term, without disproportionate, 
unsustainable reliance on one-off measures. 
 

 

The Council has passed a revision to the in-year budget bringing forward £12.5m of savings proposals and further proposals facilitated by accepting 113 
VR applications, with a full year impact £2.3m. 
 Work on the 2021/22 budget is now well advance and a proposed budget will be submitted to the Council’s Executive Board in January 2021, to 
commence the formal consultation process.  Once adopted, the budget will be monitored through the introduction of new budget oversight procedures to 
ensure savings are both tracked and delivered.  These will ensure that both members and officers are clearly sighted on the budget and the key risks 
surrounding it and have a joint responsibility for managing these. 

The 2021/22 budget will also contain the rolling three year MTFS and clearly set out the parameters against which this will be managed and delivered.  
In addition Nottingham City Council will develop a Debt Management Strategy which will manage the Council’s overall debt downwards over MTFS time 
horizons. 

 

 

Additional Officer Recommendations: 

The Action Plan prepared by the Council in response to the PIR included three additional recommendations made by Officers and agreed by Council. 

The additional recommendations (shown below for reference) were planned to take place between January and June 2021. 

In light of the recently published NSR the actions proposed in relation to these recommendations need to be reviewed to avoid duplication or abortive 

work. In particular the NSR includes the recommendations that NCC should: 

 “conduct an in-depth assessment of its group of companies during the first year of the Plan and integrate their conclusions within their 

medium-term financial planning process”; and 

 “produce a clear policy statement within 6 months which established the roles and responsibilities of nominated non-executive 

directors and shareholder representatives and incorporate it as an element of the Constitution”. 

P
age 30



 These recommendations when taken with the broader aims of the proposed Recovery and Improvement Plan are likely to subsume and 

supersede the Officer recommendations listed below: 

NCC 1 - Review of Council’s approach to the ownership of companies: The Council has a range of companies totally in its ownership and some 

owned jointly with others. These companies have developed over time and further are planned to be created during this period of office as outlined in the 

Council Plan. In the light of the findings of this report the overall approach of the Council to its relationship with its companies could benefit from a review. 

NCC 2 - Review of effective governance practice in NCC companies: The Council has a number of companies which have had effective 

governance over a number of years and which have involved elected members on the boards. As part of this improvement work it is important to 

understand what has made those council companies and Boards effective and how any learning can be applied to other council companies and the 

other recommendations in this Action Plan. 

NCC 3 - Review of membership of the Audit Committee: As a solution to the pressures from the reduction in public funding of services, the Council 

either owns or has a major interest in a considerable number of companies.  It has also pursued a policy of in-house commercialisation of some 

services.  As such the company and commercial trading risks it carries are more that would normally be expected for a local authority. P
age 31



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 
Appendix 2 

Nottingham City Governance Improvement Board 
 

Terms of Reference 
 
Description 
The Improvement Board is a politically balanced committee of Council, established 
to oversee the delivery of the Action Plan responding to the Report in the Public 
Interest concerning the Council’s Governance Arrangements for Robin Hood Energy 
Ltd (the PIR) and to review wider governance issues at Nottingham City Council. The 
committee is accountable to Council and will provide progress reports to Council 
every six months. 
 
Purpose 
The purpose of the Improvement Board is to: 

 deliver and drive progress against the PIR Action Plan 

 support improvement in the Council’s wider governance arrangements 

 ensure that a range of voices, including those independent of the Council, 
contribute to the development of governance at Nottingham City Council. 

 
Objectives 
The Board’s objectives are to: 

 steer the implementation of the PIR Action Plan and wider governance 
improvements 

 monitor progress on the implementation of the PIR Action Plan 

 assess Nottingham City Council’s current governance arrangements and 
identify and make recommendations to Council on areas for improvement 

 review the Constitution in relation to governance improvement and 
recommend amendments to the Leader in relation to executive matters and to 
Council for non-executive matters 

 identify best practice and gather views on matters within the Board’s remit 
from relevant internal and external sources, including the appointed co-opted 
members and members of the Executive, Overview and Scrutiny Committees 
and the Audit Committee 

 make decisions, including spending decisions relating to non-executive areas 
of the governance improvement programme 

 make recommendations to the Executive on executive areas of the 
governance improvement programme. 

 
Membership and Chairing 
 
The Board will consist of ten members, including two co-opted independent 
members who have full voting rights. The membership will consist of: 

 The Leader of the Council  

 Chair of Overview and Scrutiny Committee  

 Chair of Audit Committee 

 Representative of minority political groups (nominated by the leader of the 
largest minority political group) 

 Four other Councillors 

 Two independent members 

Page 33



 

 
Appendix 2 

 
The Board will be chaired by one of the Councillor members but cannot be chaired 
by the Leader, or by the Chair of Overview and Scrutiny Committee or the Chair of 
the Audit Committee.  
 
The Vice-Chair will be taken by one of the two independent members. 
 
Substitutes 
Substitute members can be appointed to this Board. Up to three named substitutes 
can be appointed for each of the following members: 

 The Leader: to be substituted by the Deputy Leader or in his or her absence, 
another member of the Executive. 

 Chair of Overview and Scrutiny: to be substituted by one of the two Vice 
Chairs of Overview and Scrutiny or, if not available, another member of the 
Overview and Scrutiny committee. 

 Chair of Audit: to be substituted by the vice chair of the Audit Committee or, if 
not available, another member of the Audit Committee. 

 
For all other Councillor members up to six named substitutes may be appointed. 
 
No substitutes may be appointed for independent members. 
 
Quorum 
The quorum for this Board is five, which must include at least one independent 
member. 
 
Frequency of Meetings 
The Board will meet as required for the period covered by the PIR Action Plan.  
 
Duration 
The Board will initially meet for the duration of the Action Plan. After that period, 
every six months, it will review its need to meet. 

Page 34



 

1 

Appendix 3 – Draft Minutes of Nottingham City Governance Improvement Board 9 
December 2020 
 

 
 
Nottingham City Council  
 
Nottingham City Governance Improvement Board 
 
Minutes of the meeting held remotely via Zoom and livestreamed on the 
Council's YouTube Channel - https://www.youtube.com/user/NottCityCouncil 
on 9 December 2020 from 10.03 am - 11.36 am 
 
Membership  
Present Absent 
Councillor Sally Longford (Chair) 
Councillor Nicola Heaton 
Councillor David Mellen 
Councillor Anne Peach 
Councillor Andrew Rule 
Councillor Sam Webster 
Mark Edgell 
Peter Murphy 
 

Councillor Rebecca Langton 
Councillor Audra Wynter 
 

  
Colleagues, partners and others in attendance:  
 
Daniel Ayrton - Business Development Manager 
Nancy Barnard - Governance and Electoral Services Manager 
Mel Barrett - Chief Executive 
Beth Brown - Head of Legal and Governance 
Clive Heaphy - Strategic Director of Finance 
Malcolm Townroe - Director of Legal and Governance 
 
1  Apologies for Absence 

 
Councillor Rebecca Langton – Personal Reasons 
Councillor Audra Wynter – Leave  
 
2  Declarations of Interest 

 
In the interests of transparency the following interests were declared: 
 
Councillor David Mellen – Director of Blueprint 
Councillor Anne Peach – Director of National Ice Centre 
Councillor Sam Webster – Member of the Nottingham Revenues and Benefits Board 
Peter Murphy – employed by Nottingham Business School at Nottingham Trent 
University, Research Consultant for Nottinghamshire Fire and Rescue Service and 
employed by the Research Excellence Framework for 2021 
Malcolm Townroe – Company Secretary for Enviro-Energy 
 
3  Appointment of Vice Chair 

 

Page 35



Nottingham City Governance Improvement Board - 9.12.20 

2 

Resolved to appoint Peter Murphy as Vice Chair for the remainder of the 
Municipal Year. 
 
4  Nottingham City Governance Improvement Board Terms of Reference 

 
Resolved to: 
 
1) recommend that Council amend the Terms of Reference to remove the 

Deputy Leader of the Council as a substitute as the Deputy Leader is 
already an appointed member of the Board; and 
 

2) note the Terms of Reference. 
 
5  Introduction from the Chief Executive of Nottingham City Council 

 
Following a round of introductions Mel Barrett, Chief Executive, Nottingham City 
Council, introduced the issues under consideration covering the following matters: 
 
(a) The work being done in implementing the Action Plan in response to the Public 

Interest Report is now being carried out in the context of the Non-Statutory 
Review led by Max Caller. The review report has been received but not yet 
published and cannot therefore be discussed. 
 

(b) All recommendations made in the Public Interest Report were accepted and the 
Council agreed some additional recommendations. 

 
(c) The Action Plan is being implemented at pace and the progress that has been 

made to date will stand the Council in good stead to respond to the Caller Report. 
 
Resolved to note the introduction. 
 
6  Governance Improvement Programme - Progress Update 

 
Malcolm Townroe, Director of Legal and Governance, introduced the report, covering 
the following points: 
 
(a) The report sets out progress to date against the Action Plan that was agreed by 

Full Council in August and then amended in November. Good progress has been 
made and the report seeks to provide assurance on that progress as well as 
outlining the work that is in train. 
 

(b) A report will be taken to Council in January requesting sign-off of the actions 
already achieved. 

 
Daniel Ayrton, Business Development Manager, then gave a presentation, including 
the following points: 
 
(c) The programme has been split into four stages, some of which will run 

concurrently. Stage one, Programme Planning and Resourcing, is complete and 
the Research and Review Stage is underway with a review of appointments, 
terms of reference and best practice. The Proposals and Approvals stage will 

Page 36



Nottingham City Governance Improvement Board - 9.12.20 

3 

commence in January when Council considers the progress report. The final 
stage will involve Adoption and Embedding which will include reviewing the 
actions taken. 
 

(d) Work has been undertaken clarifying the roles of the shareholder and the 
shareholder representative, with the shareholder for Council companies being the 
Executive.  

 
(e) A range of best practice has been reviewed including guidance from Lawyers in 

Local Government who have produced a Model Code of Practice on Councillor 
Directorships. Further consideration will be given to the involvement of 
Councillors on Boards. 

 
(f) Work on clarifying the Council’s company structures has been undertaken 

confirming that shareholder representatives are in place for all companies. 
Further work is being done on the process for appointing and removing directors 
of company boards. 

 
(g) The review of Council companies examined company structures, councillor 

directorships and board effectiveness. It provided clarity on the current situation 
and identified a number of areas for consideration including matters relating to 
the appointment and make up of company boards, the compatibility of the 
numerous roles held by councillors and the training requirements of board 
members. 

 
(h) Training for company directors has been commissioned from external sources 

and some training has already been delivered. Strong training records will be 
kept going forward. HR colleagues are working on a competency framework and 
identifying crossover with areas that would be appropriate for all councillors, such 
as General Data Protection Regulations, as well as identifying more specialist 
areas for those in certain positions. 

 
(i) The terms of reference for the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, Audit 

Committee and Companies Governance Executive Sub-Committee have been 
reviewed with input from the Local Government Association and the Chartered 
Institute for Public Finance and Accountancy. The terms of reference for 
Commissioning and Procurement Sub-Committee have also been identified for 
review as a result of the work on the Action Plan. 

 
(j) A shareholder role description and competency requirements have been drafted 

for consultation with company chairs and training for the Shareholder 
Representative is proposed. 

 
(k) The Council’s approach to risk management is also under review. 

 
(l) Next steps for the programme include: 

i. a report to Audit Committee on the use of councillors as directors on 
Boards on 18 December 2020 

ii. an overarching lessons learned report is being produced by 20 
December 2020 covering the actions and review findings 

Page 37



Nottingham City Governance Improvement Board - 9.12.20 

4 

iii. Full Council meeting to consider the findings and recommendations of 
the lessons learned report on 11 January 2021. 

 
During the subsequent discussion the following points were raised: 
 
(m)The need to review the Councillors on company boards is recognised but this will 

need to be a gradual process to avoid disruption. 
 

(n) The Council has responded positively to the Public Interest Report and has made 
a good start on implementing the Action Plan which will need to be integrated 
with the response to the Caller Review. The number of actions is challenging and 
could benefit from some prioritisation outside of deadlines to avoid a tick box 
approach and ensure focus lies on the actions that are most important. 

 
(o) The process needs to be transparent and accountable and therefore it is 

important that information is presented in as clear a manner as possible. 
Councillors need to be able to understand and own the process and to be able to 
focus on the areas of highest importance. There also needs to be an 
understanding of the impact of the actions taken to ensure they are achieving the 
desired outcomes. 

 
(p) There is a need for continuity on company boards to ensure the skills and 

knowledge obtained by Board Members are retained and put to use. Both a 
minimum and maximum term are under consideration. 

 
(q) Reports are being taken to other committees including Overview and Scrutiny 

and Audit Committees. All meetings are open to view on the Council’s YouTube 
channel and minutes of the meetings published. 

 
(r) Future meetings can examine matters including considerations when decisions 

are made to become involved in a company and how risk is fully taken into 
account. 

 
Resolved to note the report and to request that work is undertaken on the 
prioritisation of the actions and brought back to the next meeting. 

 
 
 

Page 38



 
Appendix 4 

Comment of Audit Committee on 18 December 2020 in relation to a report on 

the appointment of councillors as Directors on Boards of Council owned and 

controlled companies 

 

At its meeting of 18 December 2020, the Audit Committee was asked to consider, 

before the formal consideration by Council in January 2021, a report on the 

appointment of councillors as Directors on Boards of Council owned and controlled 

companies. 

The Committee was asked to consider the following specific recommendations:   

1. That Audit Committee note the work undertaken so far on the review of the 

use of Councillors on company boards; and 

 

2. That Audit Committee provide any comment they may have for inclusion in 

the final review due to be considered by Full Council in January 2021. 

The Committee considered this report in detail, recognising the important role that 

such companies play in assisting the Council in the delivery of its services and in 

supporting its finances. 

The Audit Committee welcomed the work being undertaken and the need for clarity 

and consistency in the role of members when acting as Directors. The Committee 

noted that when acting as a Director of a Company, an elected member must act 

solely in the interests of that Company as set out in Company law. 

The Committee noted and endorsed work being done to establish an overarching 

commercial strategy to reflect: 

1. the reasons why the Council wishes to utilise an interest in companies as a 

route to service delivery and financial stability; and 

 

2. arising from that strategy, decisions on whether to retain/divest/invest in 

individual companies according to their fit with the strategy. 

The Committee wanted to stress the importance of good governance, openness and 

transparency in the way the Council conducts its business with its companies and 

particularly the need to avoid both the reality and the perception of damaging 

conflicts of interest when elected members serve on Committees. 

With this in mind, the Committee approved three specific recommendations: 

1. That Executive Board members should not serve as a member on the 

Board of any Company which comes within the remit of their portfolio; 

 

2. That members on the Companies Governance Executive Sub Committee 

should not serve as Directors on any council-owned company (as this 

Committee directly oversees the activities and performance of all such 

companies); 

 

Page 39



 
Appendix 4 

3. That there is a relationship between Portfolio Holders and Shareholder 

representatives and that this relationship should be exercised through the 

normal Portfolio Holder briefings. 

The Committee discussed and noted that the shareholder function is a Council 

function discharged by the Companies Governance Executive Sub Committee and 

that the Shareholder Representative of each company fulfilled this function on behalf 

of the Council. 

The Committee noted that the role of independent members on company boards 

was a matter for companies to determine through their Articles of Association 

(agreed by the Council) but that the Companies Governance Executive Sub 

Committee had oversight into company performance including the skills composition 

of boards and the behavioural characterises of companies towards their parent. 

The Committee stressed the importance of induction and regular update training for 

members and officers to ensure that each can fulfil their respective roles. In 

particular, Audit Committee stressed that the role of officers in highlighting departure 

from accepted practice was important, and as such, that there was a need to refresh 

training, including whistleblowing. 

On a related training point, as part of the review of why the Council holds companies, 

the Committee stressed the need to understand how the Council procures from 

these companies as well as wider aspects of procurement. 

 

 

On behalf of Audit Committee members 

 

Page 40



 

Companies Governance Executive Sub-Committee – work plan (as at 11/01/2021) 
 
 

  
16 February 2021 

 
16 March 2021 

 
20 April 2021 

 

 
May 2021 (date TBC) 

 

 
 

P 
U 
B 
L 
I 
C 

   Sub Committee Annual Report 

Public Interest Report (PIR) Update Public Interest Report (PIR) Update Public Interest Report (PIR) Update Public Interest Report (PIR) Update 

Group Company presentation (NCT) 
 
Strategic plan 
Business Plan 
Financial update 

Group Company presentation (Futures) 
 
Strategic plan 
Business Plan 
Financial update 

Group Company presentation (SCAPE) 
 
Strategic plan 
Business Plan 
Financial update 

Group Company presentation (NIC) 
 
Strategic plan 
Business Plan 
Financial update 

 
 

E 
X 
E 
M 
P 
T 
 
I 
T 
E 
M 
S 

Presentation by Group Company (NCT) 
 
Strategic plan 
Business Plan 
Financial update 

Presentation by Group Company (Futures) 
 
Strategic plan 
Business Plan  
Financial update 
 

Presentation by Group Company (SCAPE) 
 
Strategic plan 
Business Plan 
Financial update 

Presentation by Group Company (NIC) 
 
Strategic plan 
Business Plan  
Financial update 

Council companies’ financial performance 2020/21 Council companies’ financial performance 2020/21 Council companies’ financial performance 2020/21 Council companies’ financial performance 2021/22 

   Council companies’ summary year end position 
2020-21 

Significant change in existing company plans (if 
required) 

Significant change in existing company plans (if 
required) 

Significant change in existing company plans (if 
required) 

Significant change in existing company plans (if 
required) 

Approval - new company business case & formation 
(if required) 

Approval - new company business case & formation 
(if required) 

Approval - new company business case & formation 
(if required) 

Approval - new company business case & formation 
(if required) 

 

P
age 41

A
genda Item

 5



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Creating homes and places where people want to live

Malcolm Sharp
Nick Murphy

Joanne Clifford

Companies Governance 
Executive Sub-Committee

19 January 2021

P
age 43

A
genda Item

 6



Nottingham’s 
Council 
housing 
across the 
City 

25,359 council tenancies 
1,359 leasehold properties

P
age 44



NCH collects rent 

NCC (Housing Revenue Account)

Debt   Management fee  Repairs & Maintenance Investment Retained HRA

Housing Revenue Account

P
age 45



HRA Budget 2020/21

HRA Debt 
Costs
£15m 

Retained
Housing

£4m 

Depreciation
£29 m

Responsible Tenant 
Reward

£2m
Public Realm£3m

CCTV 
£1.4m

Repairs & Maintenance Fee
£27m

Management Fee
£23m

Total HRA Budget = £105m

P
age 46



0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

14,000

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Number of Non-Decent Properties % Decency

Decent Homes Progress 2004-2020

P
age 47



Creating homes and places where people want to live

Performance then and now

2005 2020

Overall satisfaction 61% 89%

Satisfaction with repairs service 54% 83%

No. of let-table voids 851 279

Average re-let time 74.5 days 37.6 days

Value of arrears £6.5m £3.8m

P
age 48



Benchmarking 
Tenant 
Satisfaction

[HouseMark National benchmarking 
19/20]

P
age 49



Creating homes and places where people want to live

Benchmarking Costs for Housing 
Management & Maintenance

NCH cost per property £1075

National median cost per property £1357

NCH efficiency £282 per property or

£7.2m pa over the whole of the 
stock

[HouseMark National benchmarking 19/20]

P
age 50



Creating homes and places where people want to live

NO COMPLACENCY

P
age 51



Creating homes and places where people want to live

NCH Services include:

– Homelink / lettings
– Tenancy and Estate Management
– Repairs and Maintenance
– Asset Management
– Independent Living
– Assistive technology
– Rents 
– Leaseholder services 

P
age 52



Creating homes and places where people want to live

Future challenges

- Covid impact / The new normal
- Managing and maintaining the existing stock

o building safety
o carbon neutral
o support for vulnerable tenants
o White Paper / regulation

- Meeting demand for affordable housing
- Governance
- Financial
- Supporting NCC

P
age 53



Creating homes and places where people want to live

Covid Response and Impact 

• First lockdown
– Homeworking where possible
– Emergency and urgent repairs / gas servicing only
– Support for tenants eg, rent free weeks 

• Repairs backlog caught up by October

• Subsequent lockdowns
– Homeworking where possible
– BAU safely 

• Covid impact on voids, arrears, construction services, spend on PPE

P
age 54



P
age 55



P
age 56



2000.00

3000.00

4000.00

5000.00

6000.00

7000.00

8000.00

9000.00

10000.00

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Growth of the Waiting List

Year

Ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

P
age 57



P
age 58



Governance Structure

ALMO 
BOARD

GROUP 
BOARD

NCH 
REGISTERED 

PROVIDER 

NCH 
ENTERPRISES 

LIMITED

AUDIT, RISK & 
COMPLIANCE 
COMMITTEE

GOVERNANCE 
& SELECTION 
COMMITTEE

Board Members = Councillors, tenant reps and independents

Governance Action Plan 

P
age 59



Creating homes and places where people want to live

Governance -
relationship with NCC
Shareholder rep
Council reps on Board
Partnership Agreement
• Partnership Forum
• Performance reporting
• Corporate Plan
Integration with NCC back office services
Day to day working relationship

No surprises!

P
age 60



Creating homes and places where people want to live

Financial Position

Period 8 Position

BUDGET ACTUAL VARIANCE
£202k surplus £376k surplus £174k

Year End Forecast

BUDGET FORECAST VARIANCE
£305k surplus £201k surplus £-104k

Discussions underway on next year’s Management Fee

P
age 61



Creating homes and places where people want to live

Added value of NCH

• Increased tenant satisfaction
• Financial benefit of performance improvements
• External funding attracted
• NCC savings from our supported housing and 
assistive technology

• NCC savings from our temporary accommodation
• Capital receipts from disposals to NCH 
• Financial return to NCC

P
age 62



Creating homes and places where people want to live

Questions?P
age 63



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 65

Agenda Item 8
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 71

Agenda Item 9
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 73

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 93

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 95

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 97

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 99

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 101

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 103

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 105

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 107

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Governance Improvement Programme - progress update and lessons learnt
	PIR app 1
	PIR app 2
	PIR app 3
	PIR app 4

	5 Work plan
	6 Council owned company discussion - Nottingham City Homes (NCH)
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	HRA Budget 2020/21�
	Decent Homes Progress 2004-2020
	Performance then and now
	Slide Number 7
	Benchmarking Costs for Housing Management & Maintenance
	No complacency
	NCH Services include:
	Future challenges
	€Covid Response and Impact �
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15
	Slide Number 16
	Governance Structure
	Governance€- relationship with€NCC
	Financial Position�
	Added value of NCH
	Slide Number 21

	8 Council owned company discussion - Nottingham City Homes (NCH)
	9 Council owned companies financial performance update
	2021 01 19 - Financial summary position
	Appendix A - NCH Financial performance
	Appendix B - EE Financial performance
	Appendix C - NRB Financial performance
	Appendix D - NIC Financial performance
	Appendix E - NCT Financial performance
	Appendix F - TB Financial performance
	Appendix G - Blueprint Financial performance
	Appendix H - Futures Financial performance


